
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (PEACE RIVER NORTH) 
 

10112 – 105 Avenue 
Fort St. John, BC  V1J  4S4 

 
Telephone:  (250) 262-6000 

Fax:  (250) 262-6048 
 
 
 
 

Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A      B O O K 
 
 

FOR THE 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 

BOARD   ROOM  
 

MONDAY, JUNE 20, 2022 @ 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 2 
 

OUR MISSION 
All our students will graduate, crossing the stage with dignity and grace. 
 
 
OUR VALUES 
The core values that guide the work of the school division are RESPECT, 
COMPASSION, HONESTY, RESPONSIBILITY, and RELATIONSHIPS. 

 
 
OUR STRATEGIES 
As a district, we are committed to FOUR OVER-ARCHING STRATEGIES: 
 
 DELIVERY OF EXCELLENT EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMING  

 FOCUSSED ON STUDENT OUTCOMES 
  
 PROVISION OF ETHICAL LEADERSHIP FOCUSSED ON  

 RELATIONSHIPS AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
  
 EXEMPLARY MANAGEMENT PRACTISES FOCUSSED ON ALIGNING  

 RESOURCES FOR OPTIMAL RESULTS 
 

 ENGAGED GOVERNANCE FOCUSSED ON ADVOCACY,  
 ACCOUNTABILITY, AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 3 
 

 
 

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

 MONDAY, JUNE 20, 2022 
 

6:30 P.M. 
 
 

This meeting will be recorded and available on our School District website. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.0 Call to Order 

 
Acknowledgement that today’s Board Meeting is being held within the traditional territory of 
the Dane Zaa and Treaty 8. 
 

 
2.0 Additions to the Agenda/Acceptance of the Agenda 
 
 
3.0  Presentations/Delegations 

 
3.1 Creative Hub Presentation (Attachments) 
 Heather Truscott 

 
 
4.0 Trustee Input (Celebrations) 
  

5.0 Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, May 24, 2022  (pages 5-11) 
 

5.1 Approval of the Minutes 
 
5.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 

(See attached Action Item List for completed and ongoing items) 
 

  
6.0 Approval of Excerpts of the In Camera Board Meeting, April 25, 2022  (page 12) 
 
 
7.0 Announcements and Reminders 

 
 June 23  Last Day for Students 
 June 24  Hudson’s Hope Graduation    1:00 p.m. Hudson’s Hope 
 July 4  Board Advance      Board Room 
 July 6-8  CSBA 2022      Saskatoon 
 August 29 Board Meetings (Tentative)    5:00 p.m. Board Room 
 September 6 Schools Open 
 September 12 Board Meetings      5:00 p.m. Board Room 
 September 23 NID Day (School Planning) 
 September 30 Truth and Reconciliation Day 
 October 3 Policy Committee Meeting  11:00 a.m. Board Room 
 October 3 COTW Meetings   12:30 p.m. Board Room 
 October 10 Thanksgiving Day 
 October 15 Trustee Election    
 
  



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 4 
 

 
8.0 Senior Staff Reports 
 
 8.1 Superintendent’s Report  (page 13) 
 
 8.2 Secretary-Treasurer’s Report  (pages 14) 
 
 
9.0 Reports of Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting, June 6, 2022 (pages 15-16) 
 

9.1 Approval of Minutes  
 

 9.2 Business Arising 
(See attached Action Item List for completed and ongoing items) 

 
 9.3 Policy Committee (Attachments) 
 

a) Policy Committee Meeting Notes – June 6, 2022 
 

b) 5003 Physical Examination – Bus Drivers 
  Lehmann/ 

Motion:  That the Board of Education adopt Policy 5003 Physical   
 Examination – Bus Drivers 

  
c) 4022 Employment Related Accommodation (Amended) 

 Scott-Moncrieff/ 
Motion:  That the Board of Education put forward amended Policy 4022 

 Employment Related Accommodation for Notice of Motion 
 

d) 8001.1 Budget Development, Monitoring & Reporting 
 First/ 

Motion:  That the Board of Education put forward Policy 8001.1 Budget 
 Development, Monitoring & Reporting for Notice of Motion for deletion 
 

e) 3003 Selection of Learning Resources 
 First/ 
 Motion:  That the Board of Education put forward Policy 3003 Selection of 
 Learning Resources for Notice of Motion 
 

f) 2003 International Travel 
 First/ 

Motion:  That the Board of Education put forward Policy 2003 International 
 Travel for Notice of Motion 
 

 
10.0 Other Reports 

 
10.1 BCSTA – Trustee Evans 
 

 10.2 BCPSEA – Trustee Gilliss 
 
 10.3 Board Pro-D Committee – Chair Gilbert 
 
    
11.0 Correspondence 

 
 
12.0 Unfinished Business 
 
 12.1 Financial Standing Committee (Attachment) 
 
 
13.0 Five-Year Capital Plan 2023-2024 (Attachment) 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 5 
 

 Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Education approve the attached 2023-2024 
 Capital Plan 
 
14.0 2022-2023 Annual Budget (Attachment) 
 
 14.1 THAT the Second and Third Reading be done in short form 
 
 14.2 THAT the Board adopt the Second Reading of the Annual Budget Bylaw 2022-2023 
 
 14.3 THAT the Board adopt the Third and Final Reading of Annual Budget Bylaw 2022-
  2023 
 
 
15.0 New Business 

 
 
16.0 PRNTA Update – Michele Wiebe, President 
 
 
17.0 CUPE Local #4653 Update – Jennie Copeland, President 
 
 
18.0 District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Report – President 
 
 
19.0 Questions from the Press and Public 
 
 
20.0 In Camera Motions brought forward for implementation 
 
 
21.0 Adjournment 
 

******************************    
 
 
Please Note: 
Where an individual/group knows in advance they wish to address the Board, a request in writing should be 
made to the Secretary-Treasurer one week in advance of the Board Meeting in accordance with Board Policy 
#1003.1. 
 
The request must indicate the subject of the presentation, any technology requirements (ie. screen, projector, 
laptop use) and the estimated time required for the presentation.  Presentations will be limited to a maximum of 
10 minutes, unless approved otherwise. 
 
If approval is granted, an electronic/written copy of the presentation must be provided no later than Thursday 
of the week before the date of presentation. 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 6 
 

“PROVISIONAL” MINUTES 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 60 (Peace River North) 

  
 

REGULAR MEETING Tuesday, May 24, 2022       
  6:30 p.m.  
 

Present: Helen Gilbert, Chair – Board of Education (Area 5) 
Madeleine Lehmann, Vice-Chair (Area 1) 
Ida Campbell, Trustee (Area 4) 
Erin Evans, Trustee (Area 5) (via Zoom) 
Nicole Gilliss, Trustee (Area 3) (via Zoom) 

  David Scott-Moncrieff, Trustee (Area 2) 
Bill Snow, Trustee (Area 5) 

 
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent of Schools 
Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer 
Leah Reimer, Recording Secretary 

 
(Guests/Media) 
  None 
 
 
 
Call to Order  Chair Gilbert called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.    

 
Chair Gilbert acknowledged the traditional territorial lands of the Dane Zaa and Treaty 8. 
 
Meeting to be recorded and archived on our District website 
 

 
Agenda   
   Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion #58-22  Scott-Moncrieff/Evans 
   THAT the agenda be accepted as presented. 
         CARRIED. 
 
Presentations/Delegations 
  None 

   
 
Trustee Input    At this time, opportunity was given for Trustees to report on activities 

undertaken and/or information of interest:   
 

Trustee Campbell 
• Was away…nothing to report 

       
Trustee Evans 
• Busy with school and work 

    
 

Trustee Gilliss 
• Helped with Earth Day clean-up at Hudson’s Hope School 

 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 7 
 

Vice-Chair Lehmann 
• Attended Labour Management Meeting 
• Attended Public Financial Meeting 

    
Trustee Scott-Moncrieff 
• Nothing to report 

    
Trustee Snow 
• Attended SUPAC/DPAC meetings 
• Visiting liaison and extra schools 
• Attended workshop presentations at a couple of schools 
 
Chair Gilbert 
• Attended SUPAC/DPAC meetings 
• Attended PAC meetings for Baldonnel and MMMCS schools 
• Judged a couple of public speaking contests 
• Participated in Ready, Set, Learn sessions at CM Finch, Baldonnel 

 and MMMCS 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
    
   Approval of the Minutes 
 
Motion #59-22  Evans/Lehmann                        

THAT the Regular Meeting Minutes of April 25, 2022 be adopted. 
         CARRIED. 
   
   Business Arising from the Minutes 

   The following business arose from the above noted Minutes: 
 

Select Standing Committee – Chair Gilbert and Angela Telford are in 
conversation regarding the presentation.  Will bring details back to the 
Board at a future date. 

 
 
Bylaw 4/22 Trustee Election 

• Secretary-Treasurer reviewed the additional changes in “blue” that 
 were recommended after review by BCSTA and Harris & Co 

• Additional wording in #9…in all TEA areas where the Board 
 conducts the trustee election on its own behalf 

 
Motion #60-22  Campbell/Snow 

THAT the Second and Third Reading by be read in short form with all the 
changes to the bylaw. 

         CARRIED.    
 
Motion #61-22  Campbell/Evans 

THAT the Board of Education adopt the Second Reading of Trustee Bylaw 
4/22. 

          CARRIED.   
Motion #62-22  Snow/Lehmann 

THAT the Board of Education adopt the Third Reading of Trustee Bylaw 
4/22. 

         CARRIED.   



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 8 
 

 
Announcements & Reminders 
 
 June 3  Elementary Track & Field     Bert Bowes 
 June 3  Track & Field Ceremony   12:00 p.m. Bert Bowes 
 June 6  Policy Committee Meeting  11:00 a.m. Board Room 
 June 6  COTW Meetings   12:30 p.m. Board Room 
 June 6  NPAA Year End 
 June 8  Retirement & Long Service Awards   5:30 p.m. Northern Grand 
 June 17  NPSS Graduation     1:30 p.m. NP Arena 
 June 20  Board Meetings      5:00 p.m. Board Room 
 June 23  Last Day for Students 
 June 24  Hudson’s Hope Graduation    1:00 p.m. Hudson’s Hope 
 July 4  Board Advance      Board Room 
 July 6-8  CSBA 2022      Saskatoon 
 August 29 Board Meetings (if needed)    5:00 p.m. Board Room 
 September 12 Board Meetings      5:00 p.m. Board Room 
 October 15 Trustee Election    
  
 
Senior Staff Reports   

    
Superintendent’s Report 
A written and electronic report was presented.  Topics discussed and 
reported included: 

 
   Human Resources Summary for Teachers & AO’s 

• For information purposes 
 

   Superintendent’s Report 
• For information purposes 
• Indigenous Graduation requirements – BAA courses are not vetted 

 to qualify. English First Peoples 11 will be the fulfilment of the 
 requirement for NPSS for the 2022-2023…all Grade 11 students will 
 take be required to take this course.  Feel this will give them 
 maximum flexibility.  This is to get us started, however the staff and 
 curriculum coordinators continue to work on more course options 
 going forward 

 
   School Charges 2022-2023 

• See motion below 
 
Motion #63-22  Campbell/Evans 

THAT the Board accept the Superintendent’s Report with the exception of 
the item School Charges 2022-2023. 

         CARRIED. 
 

Motion #64-22  Scott-Moncrieff/Lehmann 
THAT the Board approve the attached 2022-2023 School Charges 

         CARRIED. 
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
   A written report was presented.  Topics discussed and reported included:   
 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 9 
 

   Finance Update to April 30, 2022 
• For information purposes 
• Clarification on “exhausting reserves” wording… we are not 

 touching our reserves at all with anything to do with interest income 
 or anything else 
 

   Annual Facilities Grant 
• Submission due by May 31, 2022 
• This is a fluid document...allows us to react or pivot to anything 

 other items that may come up 
• Chair Gilbert - do we have an idea of what level our buildings are at 

 in regards to deferred maintenance?  Concern around the province 
 is that we’re falling behind (ie. the AFG going out to the province  
 doesn’t cover what needs to be done and we fall further and further 
 behind) 

• Chair Gilbert – How does this tie into our carbon footprint?  
 Secretary-Treasurer - there are other envelopes we have access to.  
 Doing wraps helps to some extent.  We can apply for separate  
 funding outside of the AFG (ie. solar panels, etc.) 

• Chair Gilbert - we don’t have a carbon neutral plan developed, 
 however we have a policy that indicates we have something 

• Upper Pine – researching whether it’s best to continue to haul water 
 or have a well drilled.  With price of fuel, costs for hauling water will 
 go up 

    
Human Resources Summary Report 
• For information purposes 

   
Motion #65-22  Evans/Campbell 

THAT the Board accept the Secretary-Treasurer’s Report. 
         CARRIED. 
    

Reports of Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 
 
   Approval of the Minutes – May 9, 2022 
    
Motion #66-22  Lehmann/Snow                        

THAT the Board accept the Regular Committee of the Whole minutes of 
May 9, 2022 and its recommendations 

         CARRIED. 
 
   Business Arising from the Minutes 
   The following business arose from the above noted Minutes: 
    

Doig Days Visit – Chair Gilbert, Vice-Chair Lehmann & Trustee Scott-
Moncrieff will be attending with the Superintendent 

 
   2022-2023 Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule 

• It was noted this is subject to change following the October 2022 
 election and availability of the new board 
 

Motion #67-22  Scott-Moncrieff/Evans 
THAT the Board of Education approve the attached 2022-2023 Board of  

 Trustees Meeting Schedule 
         CARRIED. 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 10 
 

   Policy Committee 
• Nothing to report 

 
Other Reports   

BCSTA 
   BCSTA Response to Indigenous Graduation Requirement 

• Chair Gilbert submitted the Board’s survey feedback 
• The attached letter is follow up to the survey 

 
   BCSTA Disposition of Motions from AGM 2022 

• For information purposes 
 

BCPSEA 
• Nothing to report 

 
   Board Pro-D Committee 

• Nothing to report 
 
Trustee Gilliss left the meeting @ 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
2022-2023 Annual Budget 

• Secretary-Treasurer presented the attached Preliminary Annual 
 Budget presentation 

• Zero percent increase to wages.  2-3% increase in supplies.  TTOC 
 & Casuals expenses remain higher than usual due to daily health 
 checks and 5 days of sick leave 

• Trustee Scott-Moncrieff - Why not a COLA increase of 6%?  
 Secretary-Treasurer - if we do 2-3%, we have a buffer and can still 
 make cuts.  Have been speaking to departments about being 
 conservative (ie. buy in bulk for construction supplies, janitorial 
 supplies, etc.) 

• Did not receive any increases in student FTE funding from Ministry 
• Secretary-Treasurer has requested only a First Reading tonight as 

 she is waiting Ministry feedback before doing the Second and Third 
 Final Reading. 

 
   ACTION:  Place the 2022-2023 Annual Budget Second and Third Final  
   Reading on the June 20, 2022 Regular Agenda. 
 
Motion #68-22  Snow/Scott-Moncrieff 

THAT the Board adopt the First Reading of Annual Budget Bylaw 2022-
 2023. 

         CARRIED. 
 
 
Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2022/23-CPSD60-01 
 

• Secretary-Treasurer reviewed the attached new projects as well as 
 four new buses approved for purchase 
 

Motion #69-22  Scott-Moncrieff/Lehmann 
THAT in accordance with Section 68(4) of the School Act, all three readings 

 of the Capital Bylaw No. 2022/23-CPSD60-01 be given at this meeting 
         CARRIED. 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 11 
 

 
 
Motion #70-22  Campbell/Snow 

THAT the Board adopt the First Reading of Capital Bylaw No. 2023- 
 CPSD60-01 

         CARRIED. 
 
Motion #71-22  Snow/Scott-Moncrieff 

THAT the Second and Third Reading be read in short form 
      CARRIED. 

Motion #72-22  Snow/Lehmann 
THAT the Board adopt the Second Reading of Capital Bylaw No. 2023- 

 CPSD60-01 
         CARRIED. 
  
Motion #73-22  Scott-Moncrieff/Snow 

THAT the Board adopt the Third and Final Reading of Capital Bylaw No.  
 2023-CPSD60-01 

         CARRIED. 
 
 
Correspondence   
   District of Taylor – World Invitational Gold Panning Championships 

• For information purposes 
    

PRRD – North Peace Leisure Pool Consultation Representation 
• Vice-Chair Lehmann will attend Session #1 
• DPAC has been asked to attend Session #1 
• District Staff will attend Session #4 

    
Before and After School Care Support Letter 
• For information purposes 

 
 
Unfinished Business  

The following unfinished business arose from the previous meeting minutes: 
   None 

 
New Business  
   None 
 
PRNTA Update – Michele Wiebe, President 
   Regrets 
 
CUPE Local #4653 Update – Jennie Copeland, President 
   Not present 
 
District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Report – President 
   Not present 
 
Questions from Press/Public  

At this time, opportunity was given for questions from the press 
None 

 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 12 
 

Motion #74-22  Snow/Scott-Moncrieff                              
THAT the Board resume the Regular Meeting and those Motions made In 
Camera be brought forward for implementation. 

         CARRIED. 
     
Adjournment    
 
Motion #75-22  Campbell/Lehmann 

THAT the meeting be adjourned.   (8:17 p.m.) 
 

      
 

******************** 
 
 
 
                

______________________________     __________________________   
HELEN GILBERT, CHAIR,    ANGELA TELFORD, 
BOARD OF EDUCATION    SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 
 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 13 
 

 
EXCERPTS 

 FROM THE APRIL 25, 2022 
 “IN CAMERA” MEETING MINUTES 

 
The meeting was called to order and the In-camera Meeting Minutes, March 7, 2022 were read and 
adopted. 

 
 

Business Arising 
• Conflict of Interest 
• Joint Meeting Discussions 

 
 

Superintendent’s Report 
Items discussed and reported included: 
• COVID Q & A 
• Track & Field Recognition Ceremony 
• NEW – Proposed BC Food Guidelines 
• Bargaining Update 
• Admin Movement for September 2022 
• BCSSA Northern Chapter Representation 

 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
Items discussed and reported included: 
• Labour Management Meeting Minutes – March 9, 2022 
• Joint Health & Safety Meeting Minutes – March 16, 2022 
• Operating Budget 2022-2023 Update 

 
 

Committee of the Whole Reports – Business Arising 
• BCSTA AGM Motions – Indigenous Representation on Boards of Education 
• Public Engagement Survey 
• Retirement & Long Service Dinner 
• FESL Presentations 
 
 
Other Reports 
• BCSTA – Indigenous-Focused Graduation Requirement 
• BCPSEA 
 
 
Correspondence 
• None 

 
 

Unfinished Business 
• None 
 
 
New Business 
• None 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 14 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

REPORT TO THE  
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS  
 

Monday, June 20, 2022 
 
 

Human Resources 
 
1. Human Resources Summary Report for Teachers 
 

Human Resources Summary Report for Teachers & AO’s 
for period of May 20th to June 17th, 2022 

 
 Personnel 

Assignments 
Leaves of 
Absence 

Admin 
Appointments 

Resignations 
/Retirements 

Reports on 
Teachers 

      
New 

assignments 
18 5  1 13 

 
      

Changes to 
existing 

11 4    

      
Return from 

leave 
     

      
Payout prep      

      
 

RETIREES only: 
 

 
 

Education 
 
1. Superintendent’s Report –  

 https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2022/06/17/superintendents-report-june-2022/ 
 
 

2. Out of District Field Trips (Attachment) 
 Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Education approve the attached Out of 
 District Field Trips for Hudson’s Hope and Taylor Elementary schools. 

 
Respectfully submitted 
 
Stephen Petrucci, EdD 
Superintendent of Schools 

https://togetherwelearn.prn.bc.ca/2022/06/17/superintendents-report-june-2022/


Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 15 
 

 
 

REPORT TO THE 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

FROM THE SECRETARY-TREASURER 

Monday, June 20, 2022 
 

REGULAR  MEETING 
 

 
Operations 

 
1. Finance Update to May 31, 2022 (Attachment) 

 
2. Carbon Neutral Report (Attachment) 

 
 

 
Human Resources 

 
1. Human Resources Support Staff Summary 

 
Human Resources Summary Report for Support Staff 

 
For period of May 19th, 2022 to June 16th, 2022 

 
 Personnel 

Assignments 
Leaves of 
Absence 

Resignations 
 

 
New assignments 

 
5 

 
3 

 
8 

 
Changes to existing 

 
14 

  

 
Return from leave 

 
2 

  

 
Layoff 

 
 

  

 
Retirements 

 
3 

  

 
Termination 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

Governance 
 

 
 

Angela Telford, 
Secretary-Treasurer 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 16 
 

 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT #60 (PEACE RIVER NORTH) 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

“REGULAR” MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, JUNE 6, 2022 

1:30 P.M. 
 
Present: Helen Gilbert, Chair, Board of Education 

Madeleine Lehmann, Vice-Chair 
Ida Campbell, Trustee 
Erin Evans, Trustee 
Nicole Gilliss, Trustee 
David Scott-Moncrieff, Trustee 
Bill Snow, Trustee 
 
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent 
Angela Telford, Secretary Treasurer 
Leah Reimer, Recording Secretary 
 

Guests/Media:   
  Michele Wiebe, PRNTA President 
  Jennie Copeland, CUPE Local 4653 President 
 
Regrets:  
 
 
 

Education 
 
Education Update 
Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent 

 
Framework Presentations 
Clearview Elementary & Jr. Secondary (via Zoom) 
Craig Brownlee, Administrator 
 
Baldonnel Elementary 
Christine Todd, Administrator 
 
Trustee Gilliss left the meeting @ 2:30 p.m. 
 
North Peace Secondary/Energetic Learning Center 
Todd Koponyas, Administrator – NPSS  
Christine Taylor & Chris Nock, Vice-Principals – NPSS 
Lori Coulter, Vice-Principal - ELC 
 
 

Governance 
None 



Regular Agenda:  June 20, 2022  Page 17 
 

Human Resources 
None 
 
 

Operations 
 

Operations Report 
Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer 
• Upper Halfway Gymnasium – question around additional costs for the project due 

 to inflation, fuel costs, etc. 
o Angela - we’ve addressed it through architectural design, etc.  $5.1 million is 

 the cost estimate, but will likely get to $5.7 million.  Ministry has indicated 
 that there will not be any additional funding; there are accommodations in 
 the budget for housing for workers at site 

o Transportation Lift – a delay in shipping.  Was supposed to be here the  
  beginning of May.  Is causing issues at Facilities.  Suggestions were made 
  to look at using the lift at the high school or contact Fort Motors Ford 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fort St. John Creative Hub Feasibility Study



Project Objective

The project will: Result in a well-supported feasibility study for a 

Creative Hub in Fort St. John that provides direction towards the 

achievement of a sustainable facility for creation in the community.



Process



Work Completed

• Stakeholder survey, input 

workshops, and interviews

• Committee meetings

• In-person site assessment

• Community and market 

research

• Secondary research from 

local, regional, provincial, 

and national sources

• Comparator analysis

• Program analysis

• Location analysis



Vision for a New Creative Hub

“The Creative Hub will be a transformative place for Fort St. 

John. The facility will catalyze cultural development in the 

community by providing a unique and interesting place for 

multicultural expression, innovation, and community connection.



Guiding Principles for the New Facility

It is envisioned the new Creative Hub will:

1. Promote excellence in artistic endeavours and support the creation of high-
quality art.

2. Provide spaces that will enable local arts organizations to grow their 
memberships and programs.

3. Be a highly accessible facility that welcomes patrons of all abilities, 
cultures, and means.

4. Be a place that encourages collaboration, innovation, education, and 
professional development among the arts community.

5. Be sustainably operated to ensure the facility remains viable over the long 
term.

6. Be governed with strong input from artists to ensure the needs of the 
creative community are being met.

7. Support broader community development, arts education, economic 
development, tourism development, and enhancement to the quality of life 
in Fort St. John and the surrounding region.



Why Invest?

Reasons to invest include:

1. There is expressed demand for the facility.

2. Will help develop the creative economy in Fort St. John.

3. Will be a gathering and learning space for the whole community.

4. Will position Fort St. John as a unique place to visit.

5. Will support industry investment and employee retention.

6. Investment in cultural development is proven to provide a host of 

beneficial social and economic impacts.



Phase 1 Building Program 

Gross area:           

11,644 – 12,859 sf.

Social Hub at the heart 

of the facility.

Direct connections to 

multipurpose rooms.

Diffusion of natural light.



Phase 2 Building Program 

Gross area:             

6,075 – 7,695 sf.

Total area (Phase 1 + 2):

17,719 – 20,554 sf.

Exterior spaces:

- Outdoor kiln

- Art yard

- Parking

- Garbage/recycling

- Loading



Location Analysis

Process included an in-person site assessment, community 

research and mapping, and detailed site analysis.

Highest Ranked Sites:

1. NPCC (2nd floor addition)

2. Corner of 100 Ave and 

100 St



Option A – NPCC Expansion

Key Attributes:

- Strong programming 

synergies

- Leverages existing 

spaces and facility 

management

- Cost-effectiveness

- Interest in co-location

- Located downtown FSJ

- Highly accessible

Constraints:

- Further study needed to 

confirm feasibility



Option B – Stand-Alone Facility

Key Attributes:

- Programming and 

operational synergies

- Located downtown FSJ

- Highly accessible

- Land is owned by the City

Constraints:

- Higher capital and 

operational costs



Option C – Stand-Alone with Residential

Opportunities:

- Revenue could potentially 

support facility operations

- Extra traffic supports a 

lively atmosphere

- Draw artists to live and 

create in downtown FSJ

- Public/private partnerships

Constraints:

- Development and 

operational challenges

- Significantly more 

expensive and higher risk

- Potential conflicts between 

users and residents



Operating Models

North Peace Cultural Centre

- Arts Council leases space from NPCC. 

NPCC responsible for facility management. 

Stand-Alone Building

- Arts Council responsible for facility 

management. 

Stand-Alone Building with Residential

- Public/private partnership. Arts Council 

manages Creative Hub, private developer 

manages residential component.



Operational Revenue/Expense Analysis

Option A, Phase 1

Key Assumptions:

- Large government grant (approx. 

50% of total expenses)

- 100% cost recovery from 

programs

- Rent paid to NPCC

- 0.5 FTE Program Coordinator

- Part time CSRs

- Instructors included in program 

expense

Additional Costs for Stand-Alone:

- Estimated at $172,000/year



Operational Assumptions

High level of service, including:

• Year-round operation. 7 days 

per week for core facility 

groups and 6 days per week for 

public access and programs.

• Robust public programming. 

• Events and fundraisers.

• Clear and compelling facility 

brand and strong marketing.



Key Conditions for Feasibility

In order for the facility to be feasible, the following is needed:

• Significant capital funding from grants and/or partner(s).

• Confirmation of location.

• Operating partner for annual core funding.

• Significant growth in public programming.

• Significant expansion of Arts Council scope and operations.



Next Steps in Facility Development

1. Approve the Fort St. John Creative Hub Feasibility Study.

2. Host a Creative Hub Forum.

3. Strike a Facility Development Committee.

4. Collaborate with partners to select a preferred concept design and location.

5. Broaden discussions with potential partners.

6. Develop partnership agreements.

7. Conduct site and building assessments.

8. Complete a Class D capital cost estimate.

9. Develop a capital financing plan.

10.Secure commitments from partners.

11.Complete detailed design and construction.

12.Develop a facility charter.

13.Develop key operational plans.

14.Hire staff.

15.Open the facility. 



Questions?



Thank You

Contact: Justin Rousseau

justin@expeditionconsulting.ca

780-266-7888

www.expeditionconsulting.ca



























Policy Committee Meeting Notes 
Monday, June 6, 2022 

11:00 a.m. 
 

Attendees:  Stephen Petrucci, Superintendent 
 Angela Telford, Secretary-Treasurer 
 Helen Gilbert, Board Chair 
 Madeleine Lehmann, Vice-Chair 
 Ida Campbell, Trustee 
 Bill Snow, Trustee 
 Leah Reimer – Executive Assistant 
 
Regrets:  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4022 Employment-Related Accommodation (Attachment) 
• Reviewed additional changes 

o Rental increases based on CPI not teacher wage increases 
o Add wording recommending tenants’ insurance to the rental agreement 

 
ACTION:  Send back out for a second Notice of Motion at the June 20, 2022 with the additional changes 
and also include preamble 
 
 
8001.1 Budget Development, Monitoring & Reporting 
• Wording in this policy has been addressed in two new policies (Accumulated Surplus and Budgeting 

& Financial Reporting) so recommendation is to remove 
• The wording regarding quarterly reporting? Currently it is reported monthly and in the Board’s Annual 

Plan 
 
ACTION:  Send for Notice of Motion of deletion to the June 20, 2022 Board Meeting 
 
 
3003 Selection of Learning Resources 
• Due to MoE surveys, have gone through to update language that reflects our partnership with 

Focused Education to ensure inclusive language in terms of selection of resources 
• Stephen – upgrades to language for now and revisit next year as more direction is coming out 
• Will look into 4.2 reference 

 
ACTION:  Make edits and send for Notice of Motion at the June 20, 2022 Board Meeting 
 
 
2003 International Travel – NEW 
• Starting point…would like to get something out now 
• Through tracking sheet, will circle back to this 
• Need to vet this through administrators 
• Effective practices have been included for reference…will also be vetted through International 

principal and administrators 
• Discussion around at what point is it not “school related”?  Referenced in bullet one under 

Guidelines/Principles.  Add “and approved by the Board of Education” 
• Protects the Board.  We’re not supporting third party trips 
• Third party trips can be planned outside of school sites, but is not associated with the school/district 



• Note:  in the event of a principal who has occasionally forgot or because of time restraints, Stephen 
will give approval…it’s not ideal but reflective of how our system works 

 
ACTION:  Make edits and send for Notice of Motion at the June 20, 2022 Board Meeting 
 
 
Code of Conduct Discussion 
• BCSTA has guidelines on putting together policies 
• District Staff is working on our current policies to see what we have covered and where there are 

gaps 
• Would like completed before the end of the mandate of this Board…ideally for trustee nomination 

packages 
• Helen – on Board Chair call the topic came up.  Ministry is working on documentation and 

expectations related to this 
• Stephen – BCSSA is wanting to clarify sanctions for inappropriate conduct.  Ministry is working on 

behaviour expectations and possible consequences 
 
 
Next Meeting Dates 
• October 3, 2022 @ 11:00 a.m. 
• Will schedule more meetings once new board is elected in October 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
5000 Health & Safety 
 
5003  Bus Driver Physical Exams 
 
Adopted:  1982-06 
Revised:  2011-11 
Reviewed: 

Reference: https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/transportation/driving-and-
cycling/roadsafetybc/medical-fitness/commercial-driver 

 
Policy 

All Regular and Relief School Bus Drivers, including Contract Drivers, are required to take a 
Medical Examination as provided to them by RoadSafetyBC per the Motor Vehicle Act, or at the 
discretion of the Transportation Supervisor.  

 
Guidelines/Principles: 

1.         The Board agrees to pay for the medical examination, provided the driver produces a 
 receipt for the examination.  

2.         A Bus Driver’s Medical Examination form may be obtained from the Transportation 
 Supervisor prior to the examination. will be sent to the driver by mail, from 
 RoadSafetyBC when it is due. The due date for medical examinations varies by age, and 
 the District will follow up with the medical examination report and work will be suspended 
 if it is not received. 

3. The Transportation Supervisor may, if deemed necessary, request an additional 
 Medical Examination by a Medical Professional of the District’s choosing.  This form will 
 be provided by the Transportation Supervisor. 

3.         Completed forms are returned to the Transportation Supervisor for review of the 
 Assessment.  

4.         The Transportation Supervisor will advise the employee of any conditions or restrictions 
 he/she they must meet as a result of the medical examinations.  

5.         Forms are retained by the Transportation Supervisor and are considered confidential. 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/transportation/driving-and-cycling/roadsafetybc/medical-fitness/commercial-driver
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/transportation/driving-and-cycling/roadsafetybc/medical-fitness/commercial-driver


Page 1 of 3 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
8000  Finance 
 
8001.1   Budget Development, Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Adopted:  April 30, 2018  
Revised:  January 25, 2021 
Reviewed: December 14, 2020 
 
Reference:  School Act, Part 8, Division 2, Sections 110 to 113 (see below) 
 
 
Policy 
 
The Board shall, on or before the prescribed date and in accordance with legal requirements, 
submit to the Minister of Education its annual operating budget for the next fiscal year. The 
content and form of the annual operating budget shall be as required by relevant legislation and 
ministry requirements. 
  
The annual operating budget is a statement by the Board, in financial terms, of its plans and 
priorities for the upcoming fiscal year.  
 
 
Guidelines/Principles: 
 

1. Budget development and allocations will align with the priorities of the Framework for 
Enhancing Student Learning and the Board Strategic Plan; 

2. To assist in making the budget a comprehensive reflection of educational needs, the 
Superintendent and/or Secretary-Treasurer shall assure that interested groups in the 
school system have an opportunity to provide input to the development of the budget.  
The consultation plan and timeline will be presented to the Board at the January Board 
meeting by the Secretary-Treasurer; 

3. Following the consultation process, the Superintendent and/or Secretary-Treasurer shall 
present a summary of staff and stakeholder input to the Board; 

4. The Secretary-Treasurer will provide quarterly financial updates to the Board throughout 
the school year; 

5. When requested by the Minister of Education, the Board shall prepare a capital budget 
or plan for such items as the purchase and development of sites, the construction or 
renovation of school or other buildings, the furnishing and equipping of schools, and the 
acquisition of other equipment authorized as capital equipment by the Ministry of 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Education.  The capital plan shall be developed in conjunction with the Board’s Long 
Range Facility Plan.  The Board's expenditures of funds for capital projects are at the 
discretion of the Minister and are controlled by the provisions of the School Act. When a 
capital plan is approved by the Minister, the Board shall prepare and adopt a capital 
bylaw according to the provisions of the School Act. 

 
  
 

School Act Reference: 

Financial information 
110  (1) 
On or before March 15 of each year, a board must submit to the minister 

(a) 
the board's estimate of the debt service surplus or deficit it will 
experience in that fiscal year, and 

(b) 
any other information that the minister requests respecting revenue or 
other financial matters. 

(2) 

On or before March 30 of each year, the minister must prepare, approve and 
provide to each board the estimate of the board's debt service expenses for the 
next fiscal year. 

(3) 

[Repealed 2002-53-37.] 

Preparation of annual budget 
111   (1) 
In this section: 

"estimated expenditures" means the estimated expenditures plus any operating 
deficit that the board must fund in the fiscal year; 

"estimated revenues" means the estimated revenues plus appropriated operating 
reserves. 

(2) 

The board must prepare an annual budget in the form and containing the content 
specified by the minister. 

(3) 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Subject to subsection (4), estimated expenditures in the annual budget must not 
exceed estimated revenues. 

(4) 

The estimated expenditures in the annual budget, other than the debt service 
expenses estimate referred to in section 110, may exceed the estimated 
revenues if the board has held a referendum under section 112 and the 
referendum approved the amount in excess of the estimated revenues. 

Adoption of budget 
113   (1) 
A board, by bylaw, 

(a) 
must adopt an annual budget on or before June 30 of each year for the 
next fiscal year, and 

(b) 
may amend the annual budget adopted under paragraph (a). 

(2) 

If an operating grant to a board is amended under section 106.3 (6) or a grant is 
withheld or reduced under section 117 (1), the minister may order that 

(a) 
the board, by bylaw, must amend its annual budget, and 

(b) 
the board must send a certified copy of the amended annual budget to 
the minister within 60 days of the order of the minister. 

(3) 

At the request of the minister, the board must send to the minister a certified copy 
of its annual budget. 

 



























Page 1 of 2 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
2000 Students 
 
2003  International Travel 
 
Adopted:  
Revised: 
Reviewed: 
 
Reference: 
 
 
Policy 
 
The Board of Education of Peace River North recognizes the value of international 
travel to enhance a student’s educational experience and supports these experiences 
as per the following principles/guidelines:   
 
 
Guidelines/Principles: 
 

● Any trip at any time involving students and staff falls under the responsibility and 
authority of the District and approved by the Board of Education 
 

● As a supplementary curricular activity linked to a specific course or class, 
international travel can provide a significant learning experience for students 

 
● Students and/or the school are responsible for any costs associated with the trip.  

However, all students enrolled in the course should have access regardless of 
economic means 

 
● The Board expects international field trips to be organized in a manner that: 

 
○ avoids and mitigates unnecessary risk through a comprehensive risk 

assessment at the time of application and two months prior to departure 
 

○ clearly indicates the rationale to meet educational outcomes 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

● Interested school groups and administration must work with the SD60 Principal of 
International Programs to prepare and fulfill educational and operational 
requirements 

 
● Applications for Board approval should be submitted well in advance of the trip 

and prior to any financial commitments from the students or school 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
School District No. 60 
(Peace River North) 
 

 
 
4000 Education 
 
4022 Employment-Related Accommodation 
 
Adopted:  1983-06 
Revised:  1995-10,1996-06,1997-09,1999-12,2001-11,2004-06,2004-10,2006-06 
Reviewed: 2022-04 
 
Reference: BC Residential Tenancy Act 
   School District #60 – School District Rental Agreement 
  https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/02078_01 
 
 
Policy 
 
The Board may provide staff accommodation in outlying areas where no other accommodation 
is available in accordance with the attached below Rregulations. Teachers will be given priority  
 
 
Guidelines/Principles: 
 
• Priority will be given to (1) Teachers and (2) other staff 
• Teacherages are a strategy employed by the Board for the purposes of recruitment and 

retention in our rural areas. 
• Teacherages are only available during the school year unless authorized by the Secretary 

Treasurer or designate. 
• Occupants are expected to abide by the terms of the rental agreement 
 
Accommodation: 
 

1. Accommodations will contain a fridge, stove and window coverings and these items 
are not to be moved from one unit to another without the express permission of the 
Maintenance Supervisor. 

 
2. Prior to accepting occupancy, the tenant will inspect the unit with the Maintenance 

Supervisor, or designate, and will sign and receive a copy of the Inspection Sheet. 
 
Rental Schedule: 
 

1. Rent will be established by the Board to reflect the condition and type of 
accommodation supplied. 

https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/02078_01


Page 2 of 4 
 

 
2. Effective February 1, 2005 the rental/utility schedules will be reviewed every two 

years to reflect adjustments in the markets. 
 

3. The tenant is responsible for utility costs. The Board will maintain estimated 
utility costs for accommodations which will be updated annually in July to 
reflect supplier increases. Any increase/decrease will take effect in January. 
Utility costs will be paid monthly, and calculated on a cost recovery basis, with 
a final reconciliation being done in June. There will be annual increases 
based on the Consumer Price index (CPI).  

 
 

4. No rent will be charged for July and August provided the tenant occupying the unit: 
 

1. Provides the Board with written notice to vacate by May 31st annually; and, 
2. Removes all belongings, including furniture, from the unit. 

 
5. Tenants will be charged rent and utilities for the months of July and August. 

 
6. The monthly rental and utilities for the months of September to August will be 

deducted directly through the payroll system at the end of every month. July and 
August rent and utilities will be deducted at the end of June if prior approval by the 
Secretary Treasurer or designate has been granted to remain in residence. July 
Rent will be deducted at the end of June, and August Rent will be deducted on the 
September payroll.   

 
7. Tenants will be allowed to leave their personal belongings in the units during the 

months of July and August providing that: 
 

1. the tenant does not reside in the unit during July and August: 
2 .payment in the amount of $150.00 per month will be payroll deducted. 
2. the premises are left clean. 

 
Tenants will be allowed to leave their personal belongings in the units during the 
months of July and August providing that: 
1. The tenant does not reside in the unit during July and August 
2. Payments in the amount of $150.00 per month will be payroll deducted. July 

  rent will be deducted at the end of June, and August rent will be deducted on 
  the September payroll.   

3. The premises are left clean. 
4. Maintenance staff will be checking on the units as they are vacant, and will need to 

ensure that there are no issues for insurance purposes 
 

Vacating Accommodations: 
 

1. Tenants leaving the District at the end of the school year must vacate their unit by July 
15th. 
  

2. All keys must be turned in to at the time of final inspection. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

3. Upon notice of intent to vacate, the Maintenance Supervisor, or designate, and the 
tenant will compare the Inspection Sheet with the actual condition of the unit. Costs for 
repairs and/or cleaning will be charged to the tenant. 

 
Vacating Accommodations for the Months of July and August 
 

1. No rent will be charged for July and August provided the tenant occupying the unit: 
 

a) Provides the Board with written notice to vacate by May 31st annually; and, 
b) Removes all belongings, including furniture, from the unit. 

 
2. The tenant will not be guaranteed return to the same unit. 

 
 
 
Pets: 
 

1. No pets shall be housed on School Board property without the express permission of the 
Secretary-Treasurer, or designate. 

 
2. Pets, if allowed, must be kept under control at all times and not be allowed to run loose 

on school grounds. It is preferred that no animals be allowed inside units. Any damage 
caused by pets will be charged to the tenant. Pets are not permitted inside the 
educational space of school premises (ie. the school). 

 
 
Responsibilities of Parties: 
 

1. Tenants 
 

a) Damages 
 

- The tenant will be held responsible for any damages to 
accommodations, beyond normal wear and tear (including damage 
cause by pets). 

 
b) General Housekeeping 

 
- The tenant shall always maintain the unit in a clean condition. 

 
c) Removal of Garbage 

 
- The tenant shall be responsible for the disposal of all garbage and refuse in 

and about the unit. 
 

d) Renovations 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

- The tenant shall not undertake or cause to be undertaken any renovations in 
or about the unit without the express approval of the Board. 

 
f) Decorating 

 
- Responsibilities such as hanging pictures, curtains, shower curtains, 
clotheslines, etc. will be that of the tenant. 

 
2. Board 

 
a) Heating System ) 

Water System ) Maintenance and 
Malfunction Electrical ) 

 
b) Furnaces will be inspected annually at which time the filters will be changed and 

preventative maintenance will be done. 
 

c) The Board will endeavor to keep units in a good state of repair. Preventative 
maintenance will be done on a regular basis pending the availability of funding. 

 
d) An annual inspection will be done by the Maintenance Supervisor to determine 

the overall condition of the unit from a Maintenance perspective. Items found to 
be unacceptable will be repaired. If there is damage and/or certain other 
conditions found unacceptable, the tenant will be evicted. 

 
e) The board will endeavor to provide notice of inspection when feasible. 

 



Area 3 General  

The impacts of a flat per pupil allocation and inflation need to be considered.  Placing unexpected or 
unanticipated costs on districts is difficult at anytime but more so now.  The province needs to fund in 
accordance with its expectations of school districts.   

 

Rationale  

School District 60 is fiscally responsible.  We have followed Ministry expectations regarding our K-12 
Financial Planning and Reporting Policy and Accumulated Operating Surplus.  Operating Surplus funds 
are earmarked for strategic goals and there is a small buffer for unanticipated costs.  This buffer can not 
make up for the deferred maintenance on our buildings.  Adding five days paid sick leave and expecting 
us to find the money for this from a shrinking budget due to inflation is unfair.  

The new Indigenous Graduation requirement is an important factor in reconciliation.  Funds are 
necessary for development of courses and purchases of resources.  Will these be coming? 

It costs more to get supplies and materials to a northern district.  Increasing delivery costs mean we are 
able to do less with the dollars we have.  There will be an impact on the opportunities that we are able 
to give students.   

We also do not have the same product availability.  There is an increase in the supply chain issues and 
these factors contribute to a higher cost of doing basic business.  

Contracts are up for renewal and our unionized employees are negotiating well deserved wage 
increases.  In the past the Ministry has not funded wage increases for our exempt staff.  Our exempt 
staff deserve similar increases to our unionized staff.  As a district we should not have to cover those 
increases from operational dollars that are already impacted by inflation.  

Area 1 Northern Factors  

Recommendation  

Equity is a pillar of our current government.  We recommend that government look at the factors that 
affect equity of opportunity in the north, especially as it relates to transportation, operations, 
recruitment, and retention. Existing measures designed to address equity do not do so.  

 

Rationale  

Our district expends 5.6% of its budget on transportation; the provincial average is 1.9%.  The vast size 
of the district and its northern location has cost and equity implications.  Bus routes are long because of 
the nature of our area and existing infrastructure.  Our facilities staff have to travel an hour and half to 
reach some rural schools.  Rising fuel costs will have a substantial impact on our budget.   

Natural gas prices are going up as well.  In July of 2021, VFA assessed our buildings, 27 or 78% received a 
poor or critical rating.  (41% poor and 37% critical).  The FCI index for the rural schools places 56 % in the 
poor category and 44% in the critical category.  Buildings in poor or critical shape require a high degree 



of maintenance and this means travel to those locations.  The state of the buildings does not contribute 
to energy conservation so we spend more to heat buildings during our cold winters.  Carbon tax costs 
are high. 

Recruitment and retention in all departments is a significant challenge.  Attracting and keeping staff in 
the north is more difficult.  We hire more out of province teachers than districts in the south.  We would 
like to see a budget from the Ministry specifically to assist with recruiting.  We need to expand fully on 
line teaching programs that allow people to work and remain in the community while taking their 
training.  

Retention incentives like those offered by northern health to attract health care workers need to be 
made available for education.  Northern Alberta also offers retention measures such as forgivable loans 
for teachers that we can’t match.   

Recruitment and retention of educational assistants, bus drivers and maintenance staff is a concern.  A 
review of CUPE local market rates with a Currently, we have 7 active postings with zero applicants or 
non viable applicants.  We anticipate the need for an additional 13 teachers by the fall.  If we don’t 
attract 20 certified teachers to these positions we will be looking for people to teach on letters or 
permission. This could mean 20 people in classrooms that have some of the background and skills that 
we need. Twenty classrooms without qualified teachers.  Is this equity? A Ministry funded labour market 
adjustment increase may assist with retention. 

 

 

 

 

 

Area 2  

K-12 and Childcare  

 

Recommendation  

Provision of quality childcare and K-12 education is something the board supports.  Childcare has been 
added as a district responsibility but there is little clarity regarding expectations, a framework for 
program delivery or capacity building.  Action is needed beyond a Ministry title change.   

 

Rationale  

Quality childcare should provide rich early learning experiences for children prior to their entry into the 
K-12 system.  Before and after school daycare in schools means fewer transitions for students and 
makes life easier for families.  Much work needs to be done to assist districts in understanding the 



childcare expectations.  Childcare is not something that can be done off the side of someone’s already 
full desk.  The complexity of a school principal’s job increases with the addition of a daycare in their 
building.  

Government communication around day care is leading families to believe that we are further ahead in 
the development of programs than we are.  There have been many phone calls around $10.00 per day 
childcare.  Childcare involves more than just before and after school care.  Dedicated space is required 
for infant toddler care and the three to five year old age group.  Will additions be made to existing 
school facilities?   

Childcare is being added at a time when schools are facing cost pressures.  We cannot take dollars away 
from the K-12 system to do childcare.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Area 3 General  

The impacts of a flat per pupil allocation and inflation need to be considered.  Placing unexpected or 
unanticipated costs on districts is difficult at anytime but more so now.  The province needs to fund in 
accordance with its expectations of school districts.   

 

Rationale  

School District 60 is fiscally responsible.  We have followed Ministry expectations regarding our K-12 
Financial Planning and Reporting Policy and Accumulated Operating Surplus.  Operating Surplus funds 
are earmarked for strategic goals and there is a small buffer for unanticipated costs.  This buffer cannot 
make up for the deferred maintenance on our buildings.  Adding five days paid sick leave and expecting 
us to find the money for this from a shrinking budget due to inflation is unfair.  

The new Indigenous Graduation requirement is an important factor in reconciliation.  Funds are 
necessary for development of courses and purchases of resources.  Will these be coming? 



It costs more to get supplies and materials to a northern district.  Increasing delivery costs mean we are 
able to do less with the dollars we have.  There will be an impact on the opportunities that we are able 
to give students.   

We also do not have the same product availability.  There is an increase in the supply chain issues and 
these factors contribute to a higher cost of doing basic business.  

Contracts are up for renewal and our unionized employees are negotiating well deserved wage 
increases.  In the past the Ministry has not funded wage increases for our exempt staff.  Our exempt 
staff deserve similar increases to our unionized staff.  As a district we should not have to cover those 
increases from operational dollars that are already impacted by inflation.  

 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Financial Standing Committee Speech June 14 2022 Helen Gilbert – 5 minute limit 

 

Good Morning: 

I would like to acknowledge that we work, live and play on the traditional territory of the Dane Zaa and  

Treaty 8. 

Thank you for the opportunity to talk about our budget. I had looked forward to doing this in  

person and would have happily driven one hour to Dawson Creek to do so.  In the North we are used  

to inclement weather and disrupted travel, especially in the winter.  To be doing a  

Zoom meeting because the Committee had trouble with travel arrangements is ironic. 

Our first recommendation asks that Northern Factors be considered in allocation of funds so our  

students have equity of opportunity.    Last year two bus routes were  

consolidated to save costs .   Despite looking at transportation efficiencies we continue to spend far  

more on transportation than the provincial average or the amount allocated for transportation.   

Geography and infrastructure contribute to this.   

Students in K-12 are on buses by 7:30 in the morning and return home after 4:30.  Five year olds put in  

a longer work day than some adults.  Many of our routes require buses to go miles off the main road for  

pick up with a return trip to the main road.  There are no road loops so the miles add up.   

Much of our mileage is done on gravel roads resulting in wear and tear on buses that exceeds what  

is typical of asphalt miles. Ministry funding for transportation has not increased since 2016-17. 

 Fuel cost increases impact many aspects of the district beyond transportation and maintenance.   

Delivery costs for everything are going up including those of delivering water to some rural schools.  

  In our written submission we reference aging facilities being a factor in maintenance and heating costs.   

Our district spends 14.2% of our funds on operations and the provincial average is 11.5%.   

Recruitment and retention is a concern in all departments.  In the past we had  

teachers on letter of permission in specialty areas like shop, next year there will be letters of  

permission for general teaching positions.  Letters of permission are  

costly.  Currently, we have seven openings for regular classroom positions with zero suitable applicants.     



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

We anticipate a minimum need for 13 more full time teachers by September.  Potentially this means  

twenty classrooms without fully certified teachers.  Is this equity of opportunity?  

At least fifty percent of our sometimes insufficient teacher on call list is noncertified people.  

In the 21/22 school year there were unfilled part time positions. 

Prep and remedy positions were filled by TTOC’s when they were available.  This situation 

added to the administrator’s workload with the lack of consistency  

and certainty in staffing causing stress for students and teachers.   

A fully on line teacher education program with local schools used to meet teacher candidates practicum  

requirements would be  helpful.   Some of our noncertified teachers on call become interested in getting  

degrees. They need to work and remain in the community while doing so.  An education degree option  

that allowed people to remain in the community would  be attractive to them as well as some of our  

 local indigenous people. 

Recruitment of support staff is also increasingly difficult.  We can’t offer the same level of wages  other  

local industry does. This year we have had bus cancellations  

due to driver shortages. Finding replacement drivers for the recently retired ones is difficult.  

Affordable, quality childcare is important for our communities.  Our mandate in this area has increased  

without parameters around expectations or operational guidelines being given.   

The scope of many staff’s daily responsibilities has grown with the addition of before and after school   

care. 

The increase in early childhood education spaces in the region as well as the dual credit opportunity for  

our local high school students is appreciated.  We are hoping that having these spaces will expand our 

local labour pool.  

We expect that the Standing Committee will hear many concerns related to the flat per pupil allocation  

unfunded liabilities. 

The district has received the same per pupil allocation for two years.  In that time though, there have  

been increased expectations placed on districts as well as inflationary factors.  

We are extremely proud of the efforts of our staff during COVID.  As we move from COVID Safety Plans   



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 

to Personal Health Awareness Plans  what structural costs will remain? 

During COVID there has been increased use of sick  

leave; will we go back to pre-pandemic levels?  There is a social conscience about coming to work sick.   

Never taking a sick day is no longer a badge of honour.  

Districts appreciated the additional federal and provincial funding received to support COVID measures.   

There will not be additional funds for 22/23. 

School District 60 will submit a balanced budget based on a three percent inflation factor.  Optimistic    

yes!  Realistically there is likely a potential need for spending cuts through the year.   

Protecting the classroom remains at the forefront for us though.  

 

 

 

 



SD Category 
Rank

Facility/Site

1 Bert Bowes Middle School
2 Dr Kearney Middle School

SD Category 
Rank

Facility/Site

1 Charlie Lake Elementary

SD Category 
Rank

Facility/Site

1 New Northwest Area - Elementary
2 New Northwest Area - Secondary154957 Site Acquisition Require land for a new high school in the NW area.  A developer beginning a 4000 $5,895,000

Submission Category Total: $10,780,000

Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Project Cost

154956 Site Acquisition Require land for a new elementary school in the NW area.  A developer beginning $4,885,000

Submission Category Total: $37,899,199
SITE ACQUISITION

Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Project Cost

150246 Full Replacement 
( / )

Replace existing school with an 80K/425 Capacity Elementary School, currently 9 
C f f

$37,899,199

Submission Category Total: $31,899,067
REPLACEMENT/RENOVATION

159114 Addition We have some very tight years for classrooms within the school.  We are $11,996,805
159120 Addition We have some very tight years for classrooms within the school.  We are $19,902,262

Submission Status: Draft

ADDITION
Project Number Project Type Project Description Total Project Cost

Open Date: 2022-04-01
Replacement/Renovation $37,899,199

Close Date: 2022-06-30
Total $80,578,266

Report run: Friday, June 17, 2022
Run By: # Angela Telford

Submission Summary

Submission Summary: Major 2023/2024 | 2022-06-30
Submission Category Sum Total Project Cost

Submission Type: Capital Plan
Site Acquisition $10,780,000

School District: Peace River North (SD60)
Addition $31,899,067

 Source: CAPS Page 1 of 1


















































	2022-06-20 REGULAR AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING

	R 3.1 FSJ Creative Hub Presentation
	R 3.1 Creative Hub Floor 1
	R 3.1 Creative Hub Floor 2
	R 8.1 Out of District Field Trips
	R 8.2 Board Financial Report to May 31 2022
	R 8.2 Carbon Neutral Report 2021
	R 9.3a 2022-06-06 Policy Committee Meeting Notes
	R 9.3b 5003 Bus Driver Physical Exams
	R 9.3d 8001.1 Budget Development, Monitoring & Reporting
	Policy
	Financial information
	Preparation of annual budget
	Adoption of budget


	R 9.3e 3003 Selection of Learning Resources
	R 9.3f 2003 International Travel
	R 9.4c 4022 Employment-Related Accommodation - Adjusted
	Accommodation:
	Rental Schedule:
	Vacating Accommodations:
	Vacating Accommodations for the Months of July and August
	Pets:
	Responsibilities of Parties:

	R 12.1 Amalgamated Financial Standing Committee 2022
	R 12.1 Financial Standing Committee Speech June 14 2022-2
	R 13.0 5 Year Capital Plan 2023-2024
	R 14.0 Annual Budget 2022-2023

